
 

TBM	040913	 Page	1	

 

PAHRUMP TOWN BOARD MEETING 
NYE COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX 

2100 E WALT WILLIAMS DRIVE 
TUESDAY – 7:00 P.M. 

April 09, 2013 
Minutes 

 
PRESENT:        
 Town Board:          

Harley Kulkin 
Bill Dolan 
Dr. Tom Waters 
Robert Adams 
Amy Riches 

Staff: 
Bill Kohbarger, Town Manager 
Tracy Difillippo, Legal Counsel  
Michael Sullivan, Finance Director 
Matt Luis, Buildings & Grounds Manager 
Stephanie Massimino, Business License Technician 

1. Call to Order, Moment of Silence, and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Harley Kulkin called the meeting to order. 
Tom Waters led the Moment of Silence and Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Discussion and Possible Decision regarding Moving the Order of or Deleting an Agenda Item(s).  
 
Bill Dolan pulled Item 6c for further discussion. 
Dr. Waters pulled Item 6e for further discussion 

3. Presentation by the League of Women Voters of Pahrump. 
 
Dina Williamson-Erdag, President League of Women Voters of Pahrump gave a presentation about 
the group and the activities they have planned for this coming year. 
All Town Board Members thanked Mrs. Williamson-Erdag for her Presentation. 

4. Announcements  

Announcements were read by Dr. Waters 
 
Angels in the Dark is doing a Kentucky Derby party to help raise funds for a 24-Hour Suicide 
Prevention center on May 4th at1 pm at the Skate Zone building (Calvada Ave). 
All Town Board members recited how much they support this organization. 

5. Public/Board/Staff Comment: Action may not be taken upon matters considered during this item 
until specifically included on an agenda for action. – NRS241.020(2)(c)(3).  
 
Public comment was heard. 
 
Dr. Waters said he had received very positive comments on both the Town Board and Town Staff.  
 



 

TBM	040913	 Page	2	

 

Bob Adams said how he would appreciate anyone showing up the Rural Roundup, and how 
important Tourism is to the Town and people of the Town.  
 
Amy Riches said she thought all citizen opinions are important. 
 
Mr. Dolan appointed Mr. Adams to sign off on Town Vouchers for the next three months. He also 
thanked Fire Chief Lewis and Finance Assistant Carla Yoder for the work they did for the FEMA 
grant for the Fire Department. He also noted that because the Town did not receive the audit from 
Nye County in November, this will now impede the budgeting for the Town's FY14.  
 
Bill Kohbarger stated tentative budget meetings will be held on April 24th-26th at the Town 
Annex at 6pm. 

6. Discussion and Possible Decision Consent agenda items:  
a. For Possible Action – Approval of Town Vouchers. 
b. For Possible Action – Approval of Town Board meeting minutes for March 26, 2013. 
c. For Possible Action – Approval of Funding the 2013 Earth Day Educational & Environmental 

Event being held on April 27, 2013 in an amount not to exceed $2,500. 
d. For Possible Action – Approval of the Family Movie Night in the Park Series Program in an 

amount not to exceed $10,000.00 from the Parks Room Tax Fund. 
e. For Possible Action – Approval to obtain permission to purchase through the bid process a new 

Tractor for the Arena pursuant to NRS 332 payable from the Arena Room Tax Fund. 
f. For Possible Action – Approval to Accept the Resignation of Mr. John Whitney from the 

Convention Center/Civic Center Advisory Board. 

 
Dr. Waters motioned to approve consent agenda items 6a, b, d, & f.  
Mr. Dolan seconded. 
Motioned carried, 5-0. 

Item 6c 

Mr. Dolan asked when this event started. He then question Pahrump Valley Disposal and BECs 
donations. He questioned the donations part of the Earth Day budget. He questioned who the SNCCD 
was. He mentioned that he also wished the Nuclear Waste & Environmental Advisory Board had 
come to the Town Board sooner considering the Town would be spending money on this event.  

John Pawlak stated this event started 10 years ago. He answered that Pahrump Valley Disposal did 
the clean up and provided the port-a-potties. He stated that BEC's donation was the slow cookers. He 
gave thanks to the companies helping promote Earth Day and also stated that books about 
Environmental Sciences will be donated to the Library and local schools. He further mentioned he is 
the head of Southern Nye County Conservation District and this organization would be donating $300 
as well. He said that due to conflicting schedules he was unable to come sooner. 

Dr. Waters and Mr. Adams thanked John Pawlak and NWEAB for the hard work they did for this 
event and that would like to see this event every year. 

Mrs. Riches said that she thought this is a wonderful event. 

Mr. Kohbarger asked where the donation of $300 was going because on the current budget for the 
Earth Day event it said it was donated to the Town but that the NW&EAB planned on using it to pay 
the band. 



 

TBM	040913	 Page	3	

 

Mr. Pawlak stated the $300 was going straight to the band. 
 
Dr. Waters motioned to approve funding the 2013 Earth Day Educational & Environmental 
Event and to stipulate that the budget for these events will be done 120 days in advance for now 
on.  
Mrs. Riches seconded. 
Motion carried, 5-0. 

Item 6e 

Dr. Waters stated he pulled this item just so he could change the wording of the item for motion.  
 
Dr. Waters motioned to approve bidding for purchase of a new tractor for the Arena payable 
from the Arena Room Tax fund. 
Mr. Dolan seconded. 
Motioned carried, 5-0. 

7. Advisory Board Reports from Advisory Board Chairpersons and/or Town Board Liaisons on the 
Status of Advisory Boards.  
 
Dr. Waters stated he would like for citizens to come to the Youth Advisory Board.  
 
Mr. Pawlak stated the Youth Advisory Board would be going to the museum to try and incorporate 
more ideas there.  
 
Richard Goldstein said the Veteran’s Advisory Board would encourage citizens to show up the 
meeting and give their input.  
 
Dave Clayson stated the plans for Kellogg Park were coming along well. He also stated he 
encouraged any ideas from the Town Board or the public. He also said thank you to the Town for 
approving Movie Night in the park.  
 
Mr. Kohbarger also stated that the Town Board Retreat went smoothly and the Town Board did well. 

8. Discussion and Possible Decision to Address Inaccurate & Negligent Claims of Town Action, Town 
Responsibilities & Related Matters that Lower the Estimation of the Town in the Community; 
Authorize the Town Attorney to Pursue All Legal Remedies to Address Serious and Harmful 
Inaccuracies.  
 
Mr. Kohbarger said this item is on the Agenda because through-out time the Town Board gets blamed 
for things that are not Town responsibilities. He goes on to say that regarding the PV Times article 
written by Mark Waite about the Valley Homes’ Green Man sign that was taken down, the Town in 
no way has any control over these issues and that this was a Nye County responsibility only. He then 
presented emails from the County to the Mr. Waite showing they had discussed that Code 
Compliance is a responsibly of the County. 
 
Dr. Waters asked if we as a Town are implying Nye County did anything wrong. He also asked is this 
the only thing the Town is blamed for that Nye County is responsible for.  
Mr. Kohbarger stated that in no way the county did anything wrong and they followed all the legal 
processes they were supposed to. Mr. Kohbarger said no this is just one of many things. 
 
Mr. Adams said he has an issue with the last two sentences of the article, and found they were 
uncalled for.  



 

TBM	040913	 Page	4	

 

 
Matt Ward stated that Mark Waite in his opinion is a good writer, and that when brought to Mr. 
Waite's attention that the sign actually had value he figured it would a light hearted story. He said yes 
some errors were made and that if someone from the Town had contacted him he would have printed 
an editor’s retraction and said he only received news of the possible legal action from a local 
Television Station. He said however this was simple mistake. 
 
Mr. Kulkin said the damage is done, and that he felt that as much as this may be a mistake that Mr. 
Waite's should have still checked his facts.  
 
Mrs. Riches stated that she received a telephone call from an irate citizen about the PV Times article 
and requested that PV Times print an article about what the Town’s responsibilities are.  
 
Mr. Dolan thanked Mr. Ward for coming but noticed the web comments were printed in the paper. He 
said that when comments were printed they were blaming the Town for things the Town did not do 
and that he would prefer to see those comments not printed if they were providing incorrect material.  
He also stated that he personally contacted Mr. Waite and asked why he printed the misinformation. 
He stated that Mr. Waite had said he tried to speak with Mr. Kohbarger a day and half before the 
article was printed but phone records show that they spoke an hour & half before Mr. Waite’s 
deadline.  He further questioned Mr. Ward about why a retraction was not written by Mr. Waite when 
he found out the errors in the article. 
 
Mr. Ward stated it had not been brought to his attention. He also stated he thought the comment about 
Mr. Kohbarger was funny. He also stated from the raw notes from Mr. Waite show he was told the 
Town owned the sign. He also stated he did not find this a serious enough reason to write a retraction. 
 
Mr. Dolan and Mr. Kulkin both stated that this is a serious mistake and that a retraction was 
necessary. 
 
Mr. Kulkin also said that Mr. Harris was one of the best reporters he has ever interacted with and that 
he was extremely accurate in his articles in the papers. He also felt that Mr. Harris should be put in 
charge over Mr. Waite.  

Mr. Ward defended Mr. Waite. 

Mr. Kohbarger said that he had contacted Mr. Ward about another article written and that article was 
also false and harsh wording, and that he would prefer personal comments about him be withheld if 
they are not needed to the story.  

Dr. Waters also stated this motion was not to bring legal action against the paper now but in the future 
should it happen again. 

Mr. Kulkin stated that he would prefer a meeting with Mr. Ward and the PV Times to resolve the 
issues.  

Mr. Kohbarger stated that if the Town Board wanted to table this item to have meetings with Mr. 
Ward that was also an option. 
 
Public comment was heard. 
 
Mr. Dolan motioned to tabled Item 8 for two Town Board meting so that two Town Board 
members along with Town staff members could meet with PV Times staff.  
Dr. Waters seconded.  



 

TBM	040913	 Page	5	

 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

9. Discussion and Possible Decision on the Appointment of a Pahrump Town Board member to the 
Pahrump Regional Planning Commission (RPC).  
 
Dr. Waters made a statement about the way the County Commissioners handled the Town's 
appointment of Mr. Kulkin as the RPC representative. He stated the Commissioners completely 
ignored the 5-0 vote of the Town Board and attacked the Town’s choice at the BoCC meeting. He 
stated they did not give any reason other than personal dislike as to why they would not approve the 
Town Board’s RPC representative.  
 
Mr. Adams stated he felt that the Town should stay with the original choice. 
 
Dr. Waters stated that no matter who the Town appoints the Town needs representation for the RPC. 
 
Mr. Dolan and Mrs. Riches stated they both agreed with Dr. Waters.  
 
Mr. Kulkin stated the reason he felt to stand their ground on the original recommendation was that he 
felt it would be bowing down to the County.  
 
Public comment was heard.  
 
Mrs. Riches motioned to approve Mr. Dolan as the RPC representative. 
Dr. Waters seconded. 
Motion carried, 3-2 with Mr. Kulkin and Mr. Adams voting nay. 

10. Discussion and Possible Decision Regarding having the Town of Pahrump take part in the “Battle 
Born – Nevada Proud” 150th Anniversary of Statehood.  

 
Mr. Dolan stated he brought this to the Town to see if there was an interest to take part in this event. 
 
Dr. Waters stated he felt this was something that we should take part in. 
 
Mr. Adams and Mrs. Riches agreed with Dr. Waters comments.  
 
Mr. Kohbarger advised he thinks the Town Board should send this to the Advisory Boards first for 
their recommendation. 
 
Mr. Dolan motioned to proceed in partaking in Nevada Proud Anniversary by contacting the 
advisory boards. 
Mr. Adams seconded. 
Motion carried, 5-0. 

 
11. Discussion and Possible Decision to revisit the 2013 Town Board Goals and Objectives to ensure that 

the correct G&O's were carried forward from the 2011-2012 Goals & Objectives list which became 
part of the new 2013 Goals & Objectives. 

Dr. Waters stated he wanted the Board to clarify which Goals and Objections they wanted closed and 
reopened. He said he wanted to see Goals and Objects numbers #17 (CE 16) and #20 (CE 24) 
reopened, and to close out number #13 (CE 8). 

Mr. Dolan stated he wanted closed item because there had been no movement on the items. 
 



 

TBM	040913	 Page	6	

 

Dr. Waters motioned to reopen G&O numbers 17 and 20 and close out number 13. 
Mr. Dolan seconded. 
Motion carried, 5-0. 

12. Discussion and Possible Decision to purchase through the State Purchasing a new 1-Ton Service Truck 
with Utility Boxes for the Buildings & Grounds Department payable from the General Fund Special 
Assessed Value Capital Fund Budget in an amount not to exceed $45,000.  
 
Matt Luis stated that Town of Pahrump Buildings & Ground is asking to replace a vehicle that is having 
more and more trouble. They want to replace it with a more accommodating truck for the jobs they need it 
for. 
 
Mrs. Riches stated she thinks that it is too much money and that she felt that the truck is not bad enough to 
purchase a brand new truck.  
 
Mr. Dolan asked Mr. Luis if this truck was a safety concern. 
Mr. Luis replied yes it was becoming one.  
 
Dr. Waters stated he agreed that we should buy the Buildings & Grounds a new truck so they can complete 
their work properly.  
 
Mr. Adams said he agreed that it was time to replace the vehicle. 
 
Mr. Kulkin stated that it is time to replace this truck and that he did find need in the future to make sure 
the Buildings & Grounds department had a truck that could complete all the work they would need to 
complete.  
 
Public comment was heard.  
 
Dr. Waters motioned to approve a purchase through the State Purchasing a new 1-Ton service truck 
with utility boxes for the Buildings & Grounds Department payable from the General Fund Special 
Assessed Value Capital Fund Budget in an amount not to exceed $45,000. 
Mr. Dolan second. 
Motion carried, 5-0. 

13. Discussion and Possible Decision to send a “Letter of Support” for SB 337 to both the Senate and 
Assembly Government Affairs Committees on behalf of the Pahrump Town Board.  
 
Mr. Dolan stated this Bill was important and that we should draft a letter of support for it because 
long term it would be very beneficial to us.  
 
Mr. Kulkin stated that we should send a letter of support but in our letter it should also include the 
changes we would like to see changed to this bill.  
 
Mrs. Riches stated she did not understand what this bill be would doing. 
 
Mr. Kohbarger stated that this Bill would allow the tax money collected in an area would be spend in 
that area instead of going to other places.  
 
Dr. Waters noted that other States like New York are already instituting this bill and it was working 
out well.  
 
Public comment was heard.  



 

TBM	040913	 Page	7	

 

 
Mr. Dolan motioned to send a "Letter of Support" for SB 337 to both the Senate and Assembly 
Government Affairs Committees on behalf of the Pahrump Town Board. 
Mr. Adams second. 
Motion carried, 5-0. 

14. Future Meetings/Workshops: Date, Time and Location  

Mr. Kohbarger reiterated the Town Board Tentative 2014 Budget Meeting will be April 24th-26th. 

15. Public/Board/Staff Comment: Action may not be taken upon matters considered during this item 
until specifically included on an agenda for action. – NRS241.020(2)(c)(3).  
 
Public comment was heard.  

16. Adjournment  

Meeting adjourned at 10:35 PM. 


